

NATIONAL CREDIT UNION ADMINISTRATION

CUONLINE:

CREDIT UNION PROFILE AND

5300 CALL REPORT

USER GUIDE

Natural Person Credit Unions

- 1 -

October 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| INTRODUCTION | 4 |
|--|----|
| ACCESSING CUONLINE | 4 |
| Usernames and Passwords | 4 |
| EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS | 5 |
| NCUA Connect Email Notifications | 5 |
| CUOnline Email Notifications | 5 |
| MY ACCOUNT | 6 |
| Managing User Account Details (Self Service) | 6 |
| CUONLINE CREDIT UNION USER ROLES | 7 |
| CUOnline CU Administrator | 7 |
| CUOnline CU User | |
| NCUA CONNECT ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES | 8 |
| CUONLINE HELP TIPS | 8 |
| CREDIT UNION PROFILE | 8 |
| View Profile Snapshots | 9 |
| Profile Tips | |
| Users Tab | 10 |
| Saving and Certifying a Credit Union's Profile | |
| Downloading Profile Information | |
| Printing | |
| 5300 CALL REPORT | 19 |
| Call Report Tab | 19 |
| Call Report Tips | 22 |
| | |

| Natural Person Credit Unions | Version 1.1 |
|---|-------------|
| Correcting Call Reports | |
| Downloading Call Report Information | |
| Printing Call Reports | |
| PASSWORD AND COMPUTER SECURITY BEST PRACTICES | 41 |
| NCUA Connect Password Help Tips | 41 |
| DOs and DON'Ts of Password Security | |
| Computer Security Information | 43 |
| APPENDIX A: TABLE OF FIGURES | |

INTRODUCTION

CUOnline is the web-based system the NCUA uses to collect and disseminate credit union data. CUOnline includes the credit union 4501A Profile and 5300 Call Report. The NCUA requires all active credit unions to submit their data through CUOnline.

This document provides guidance for completing all required and optional information, data entry help tips, and webpage navigation.

ACCESSING CUONLINE

To access CUOnline, users must first be granted access to NCUA Connect. Please refer to the <u>NCUA Connect & Admin Portal: User Guide</u> for detailed instructions on establishing access to NCUA Connect.

Once NCUA Connect access has been granted, CUOnline users can access CUOnline by selecting the CUOnline tile from My Apps. Alternatively, users will be directed to the NCUA Connect login from the link in the <u>CUOnline section of the NCUA's website</u> or by visiting <u>https://cuonline.ncua.gov/</u>.

The NCUA recommends users establish a shortcut to this site and/or add it to their favorites for easy reference.

Usernames and Passwords

Users are required to provide a unique username, password, and multifactor authentication (MFA) method to access their NCUA Connect account. The NCUA Connect username must be in email format, but it does not have to be a valid email address.

If a user does not have access to CUOnline, please contact the credit union's assigned NCUA Connect Portal Administrator for access.

NCUA Connect Portal Administrators can add, edit, and delete users; reset passwords; and unlock user accounts by logging in to the NCUA Connect Admin Portal.

To change a user account password, follow the instructions listed under the My Account section of this document.

EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS

NCUA Connect Email Notifications

NCUA Connect generates the following email notifications:

- <u>Welcome to NCUA Connect</u>: Sent when a new credit union user is added to NCUA Connect. The user will need to follow the account activation steps to access the system. Account activation links expire seven calendar days after being generated, so users are encouraged to follow the steps as soon as they are able.
- <u>New Account Request Approved</u>: Informs the account requestor when a new account request is approved by the NCUA. A separate email is sent to the new user prompting them to set up their NCUA Connect account.
- <u>New Account Request Denied</u>: Informs the account requestor when a new user account was denied with an explanation for the denial.
- <u>User Reactivation Request Approved</u>: Informs the requestor when an account reactivation request is approved by the NCUA. A separate email is sent to the reactivated user prompting them to set up their NCUA Connect account. This scenario occurs if a user has a suspended NCUA account (for example, the user has not accessed NCUA Connect in 120 days). Deactivated accounts must be unlocked by NCUA.
- <u>User Reactivation Request Denied</u>: Informs the requestor when a user reactivation request is denied and provides an explanation for denial. This scenario occurs if a user has a suspended NCUA account (for example, the user has not accessed NCUA Connect in 120 days). Suspended accounts must be unlocked (or denied) by NCUA.
- Password Reset: Sent when a user changes or resets their password.

CUOnline Email Notifications

CUOnline generates the following email notifications:

- <u>Financial Performance Report (FPR)</u>: Sent to designated users after each successful Call Report upload.
- General Call Report Notifications:
 - One- and two-day reminder emails to submit the Call Report.
 - \circ $\;$ When a Call Report is late and subject to civil money penalties.
 - A credit union's Call Report status has changed.
- <u>Validation</u>: An email is sent to designated users once the Call Report has been validated
- <u>Corrections</u>: An email is sent to designated users when the Call Report is submitted after previous validations (for example, corrections were made).

- <u>General Profile Notifications</u>: An email is sent to credit union Profile contacts and regulators when:
 - A credit union Profile has been certified.
 - A credit union Profile is expiring.
 - Additions or Deletions are made to the "General" Tab.
 - Additions or Deletions are made to the "Sites" Tab.
 - Additions or Deletions are made to the "Contacts" Tab.
 - Additions or Deletions are made to the "Information Technology" Tab.
 - Additions or Deletions are made to the "Programs & Services" Tab.

The NCUA sends these email notifications from <u>SysEWeb@NCUA.gov</u> or from <u>sys5300@ncua.gov</u>. If a user does not receive these email notifications, one of the following problems may exist:

- The NCUA Connect Portal Administrator did not create the user account in the Admin Portal. This can be confirmed with the credit union's assigned CUOnline administrator. Review the <u>CUOnline Credit Union User Roles</u> section of this document for more information.
- The NCUA Connect Portal Administrator entered an invalid or incorrect email address when they were setting up the user's account. Check with the credit union's assigned CUOnline administrator or the "My Account" module of CUOnline.
- The user's email system may have the NCUA on an anti-spam list. The subscriber should contact their email support staff and request the NCUA be removed from the anti-spam list.

MY ACCOUNT

The My Account module in CUOnline is read-only. Users make self-service modifications to their account through NCUA Connect.

Managing User Account Details (Self Service)

User account details are managed through NCUA Connect. By using the 'Settings' module of NCUA Connect, users with existing NCUA Connect accounts can perform the following self-service updates:

- Modify personal information including First Name, Last Name, and email address
- Change the selected security image
- Modify the display language
- Change the current password

- Select a new security question This is the question that is prompted when a user requests a password reset
- Add/modify login verification methods

| okta | Q. Search your appa | | ~ |
|--|--|---|---|
| My Apps WOR | Account | | |
| Add section (| ▲ Personal Information | A Change Pessword | - |
| A Notifications | Pest nems Lest nems Deter usemene Printery emeil Secondery emeil Mode proce | Pleasance it requirements A data lists 12 characteris A management enter A manage | |
| | Con Security Image Real Real Real Real Real Real Real Rea | Contines new password | |
| Sec. and | | Charge Faceword | |
| Land segni Mills Inimulai segni 17 2023 Civita, Inc. Primary | | Forgotten Plassword Question | |

Figure 1 - NCUA Connect Settings Page

If you do not have an existing NCUA Connect account, contact your credit union's NCUA Connect Administrator.

CUONLINE CREDIT UNION USER ROLES

All credit union users must be registered and assigned one of the two user roles: Administrator and User. These roles are described in the following sections.

CUOnline CU Administrator

This role controls access to CUOnline and submission of credit union data. A credit union should limit the number of administrators due to the privileges and control they have of CUOnline for their credit union. A credit union administrator's role includes the ability to:

- Input and change Profile data for their credit union
- Input and submit a 5300 Call Report on behalf of their credit union
- Certify the Profile for accuracy and submit to the NCUA on behalf of their credit union
- Correct and delete pending corrected 5300 Call Reports for their credit union

CUOnline CU User

The CUOnline CU User role is more restricted than the administrator role. A credit union may not have any users with this role. A credit union user's role includes the ability to:

- Change their personal information in NCUA Connect
- Input and change Profile data for their credit union
- Certify the Profile for accuracy and submit to the NCUA for their credit union
- Input, submit, and correct a 5300 Call Report for their credit union

NCUA CONNECT ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES

NCUA Connect Portal Administrators are responsible for establishing, modifying, and deleting user accounts in NCUA Connect. The administrator is responsible for ensuring only staff needing access to the system are granted access, and only to the level of permissions needed to complete their work.

Note: Refer to the <u>NCUA Connect and Admin Portal User Guide</u> for user management protocols.

CUONLINE HELP TIPS

- The system allows users to use standard keyboard shortcuts.
- The system auto saves data after five minutes as the user is populating the various screens and tabs in the "Profile" and "Call Report".
- The system provides a spell check option allowing users to toggle this option on or off when desired. Misspelled words will be indicated on the screen using a red wavy line.
- A "?" icon links the user to context-sensitive instruction. Selecting this icon will allow the user to view PDF help documentation in the system.
- Any single Call Report or Profile page can be printed without printing the entire Call Report or Profile.

CREDIT UNION PROFILE

Please reference the <u>NCUA Form 4501A Profile - Instructions</u>. Select the "Instruction" button seen on the top of the Profile tabs for specific reporting instructions.

Instructions for each page of the Profile can also be accessed by clicking the "?" at the top of each page of the Profile, as seen in *Figure 2* - "?" *Icon to Open Profile Tab Instructions*.



Figure 2 - "?" Icon to Open Profile Tab Instructions

The Credit Union Profile chapter covers general information about the Credit Union Profile functions of CUOnline, including:

- View Profile Snapshots Page
- Profile Tips
- Users Tab
- Saving and Certifying a Credit Union's Profile

View Profile Snapshots

After submitting the initial Call Report for a cycle, the NCUA's CUOnline application takes a snapshot of the credit union's Profile as of that date and time.

Users can view current and previously submitted saved or certified Profiles on the "Profile Snapshots" page as a PDF or XML file. If there is a Call Report correction for a cycle, the snapshots will not change.

Note: Only Credit Union Administrators can download the Profile XML File.

To view the "Profile Snapshots" page for a credit union:

1. After logging into the system, all credit union users will be redirected to the "Profile Snapshots" page for their credit union, as seen in *Figure 3 - Profile Snapshot Page*.

| Profile Call | Report | | | | | | | |
|---|---|--------------|------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--|--|--|
| Profile Snapshot | ts | | | | ? | | | |
| Charter Number | Charter Number Credit Union Name This page provides users with a PDF snapshot of the profiles as of the day the Call Report is initially submitted for a specific cycle. To view this file, click on the PDF button below. To view or edit the current credit union profile, click on the PDF button below. | | | | | | | |
| This page provides users wit on the Current Profile link b | | | | | | | | |
| Cycle Date | Last Certification Date | Certified By | Submission Date | Call Report Certifier | Save As | | | |
| Current Profile | 01/30/2021, 5:58:14 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Dec 2020 | 01/30/2021, 5:58:14 PM | | 01/30/2021, 6:41:00 PM | Internet. | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Sep 2020 | 10/21/2020, 7:44:48 PM | | 10/25/2020, 7:32:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Jun 2020 | 07/26/2020, 2:02:45 PM | - | 07/26/2020, 2:03:00 PM | - | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Mar 2020 | 04/25/2020, 9:01:03 PM | | 04/25/2020, 9:02:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Dec 2019 | 01/26/2020, 3:20:25 PM | - | 01/26/2020, 3:23:00 PM | ACCOUNTS ON A | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Sep 2019 | 10/27/2019, 7:34:28 PM | | 10/27/2019, 8:12:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| hun 2010 | 07/24/2010 111002 014 | | 17775/2010 0-2000 PM | | - | | | |

Figure 3 - Profile Snapshot Page

2. **Select** the "Certified PDF" or "XML" buttons to view previous or current Profile snapshots. Depending on the user's individual web browser settings, the browser will download the selected file to the user's computer and will save or open the selected file.

Profile Tips

To enter new information or correct existing information, navigate to the appropriate tab and select the Edit button. Edit the required information and select OK.

To view any errors and warnings, select the "Errors" or "Warnings" links at the top of the page. The errors and warnings refresh during data entry. As data is entered, the number of errors and warnings will fluctuate.

Note: Selecting the "Cancel" button will cancel all changes. Changes will not be saved to the system.

Users Tab

The "Users" tab has been removed from the CUOnline Profile. NCUA Connect Portal Administrators with access to the Admin Portal can view and manage users for their credit union through the Admin Portal.

<u>Self-Guided Admin Portal Training</u> and the <u>NCUA Connect & Admin Portal User Guide</u> are available on ncua.gov.

Users should contact their assigned Credit Union Administrator to resolve issues with their user account.

Saving and Certifying a Credit Union's Profile

Credit unions must send their Profile to the NCUA after all changes are made and at least once per quarter.

If users are unable to complete the updates to a credit union Profile, but wish to save progress, they have the option to save Profile changes without submitting the changes to the NCUA. Alternatively, users may submit an unlimited number of certified Profile changes to the NCUA by saving and certifying the Profile.

This section addresses the following topics:

- Saving Profile Changes without Certifying
- Profile Auto Save
- Profile Status
- <u>Certifying the Credit Union Profile</u>
- <u>Certification Help Tips</u>

Saving Credit Union Profile Changes without Certifying

To save credit union Profile changes without certifying:

1. Navigate to the Profile section, as seen in Figure 4 - Profile Snapshots Page.

| Profile Call R | teport | | | | |
|---|--|--------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Profile Snapshot | s | | | | ? |
| Charter Number | | | | Credit Union | Name |
| This page provides users with on the Current Profile link be | h a PDF snapshot of the profiles as of the da slow. | ly the Call Report is initially subm | itted for a specific cycle. To view this file, | click on the PDF button below. To view | or edit the current credit union profile, clic |
| Cycle Date | Last Certification Date | Certified By | Submission Date | Call Report Certifier | Save As |
| Current Profile | 04/28/2021, 6:46:16 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| Mar 2021 | 04/28/2021; 5:45:16 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| Dec 2020 | 01/30/2021, 5:58:14 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| Sep 2020 | 10/21/2020, 7:44:48 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
|)un 2020 | 07/26/2020. 2:02:45 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| Mar 2020 | 04/25/2020. 9:01:03 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| Dec 2019 | 01/26/2020, 3:20:25 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| | 10/07/2010 7.24-29 044 | | | | |

Figure 4 - Profile Snapshots Page

- 2. **Navigate** to the current Profile. Make the desired changes to the credit union Profile. More details about modifying the Profile can be found in the <u>Credit Union</u> <u>Profile</u> section.
- 3. **Select** the "Save" button, as seen in *Figure 5 Profile Save Button*.

Note: While users may click through the Profile tabs without selecting the save or allowing the auto save countdown to complete, navigating away from the credit union Profile without saving changes will result in data loss.



Figure 5 - Profile Save Button

Profile Auto Save

Making changes to the credit union Profile automatically triggers the auto save function. Every five minutes after an initial change is made to the credit union Profile, the system will automatically save the user's progress. An illustration of the auto save countdown is available in *Figure 6 - Profile Auto Save Counter*.

Note: Auto save only triggers after a user has made changes to data that has already been saved. While users may click through the Profile tabs without selecting the "Save" button or allowing the auto save countdown to complete, navigating away from the credit union Profile without saving changes will result in data loss.

| Next auto save in 4:56 | | | | | | | |
|---|-----------------------------|------------|--|-----------------|--------------|--------------------|-----------------|
| Profile Call Report | | | | | | | : 0 Warnings: 2 |
| | | | View/Print | Certified PDF | Instruction | Certify and Submit | Save |
| General Contacts Sites | PSSP Information Technology | Regulatory | Disaster Recovery | Programs & Ser | vices Grants | Merger Registry | Users |
| General Credit Union | Information | | | | | | Print ? |
| Charter Number | | Cr | edit Committee Type* | Ĺ | | | |
| Credit Union Name | | EI | N* | | | | |
| Credit Union Type | FISCU | RS | SD | | | _ | |
| Status | Active | M | ember of FHLB | | 1 | | |
| Year Chartered | | Во | prrows from FRB | | | | |
| Date Insured | | Ple | edged Collateral With FR | | | | |
| Region | | Do | oes your credit union spor fined benefit plan? | sor a qualified | Yes | Ψ. | |
| SE | | Do | pes your credit union part ultiemployer defined ben | cipate in a | No | 7 | |
| District | | | | | | | |
| Charter State (State Credit Unio Only) | n | | | | | | |
| Field Of Membership Type | Non-Federal Credit Union | | | | | | |

Figure 6 - Profile Auto Save Counter

Profile Status

A Profile may be saved without being certified; however, data is not submitted to NCUA until the Save, Certify, and Submit process has been completed. A yellow Certification Warning indicator, as seen in *Figure 7 - Example of Certification Warning*, will warn the user that the Profile has not been certified.

| | cuo | nline | ŧ. | | | | | | Welcome | C+ Logout |
|------------------------|----------|-------|------|------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|---|--------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Profile | Call Re | eport | | | | - | | | Erro | ors: 0 Warnings: 7 |
| | | | | | \rightarrow | View/Print Ce | ertified PDF | Instruction | Certify and Subr | nit Save |
| General | Contacts | Sites | PSSP | Information Technology | Regulatory | Business Continuity | Programs & | Services Gran | nts Merger Regist | гу |
| Charter N Credit Un | lumber | | | - | | Cr | edit Committee 1 | Туре* | No Committee | |
| Credit Un | ion Type | | | FCU | | RS | SD | | | |
| Status | | | | Active | | M | ember of FHLB | | | |
| Year Char | tered | | | | | Bo | errows from FRB | | | |
| Date Insu | red | | | | | Ple | edged Collateral | With FRB | - N. | |
| Region | | | | | | Do | bes your credit un alified defined b | nion sponsor a enefit plan? | Yes + | |

Figure 7 - Example of Certification Warning

Certifying the Credit Union Profile

After changes have been made to a credit union's Profile and checked for accuracy, users save and certify the credit union Profile for submission to the NCUA.

To save and certify a credit union Profile:

1. **Navigate** to a credit union's Profile section, as seen in *Figure 8 - Credit Union Profile Module*

| Profile Call R | leport | | | | |
|---|---|-------------------------------------|--|-------------------------------------|---|
| Profile Snapshots | s | | | | ? |
| Charter Number | | | | | Credit Union Name |
| This page provides users with on the Current Profile link be | h a PDF snapshot of the profiles as of the da dow. | y the Call Report is initially subm | nitted for a specific cycle. To view this file, clic | ck on the PDF button below. To view | or edit the current credit union profile, click |
| Cycle Date | Last Certification Date | Certified By | Submission Date | Call Report Certifier | Save As |
| Current Profile | 01/26/2021, 2:16:09 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML |
| Dec 2020 | 01/26/2021, 2:16:09 PM | | 01/26/2021, 2:17:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML |
| Sep 2020 | 10/23/2020, 1:15:01 PM | | 10/23/2020, 1:18:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML |
| Jun 2020 | 07/23/2020. 12:39:42 PM | | 07/23/2020, 12:46:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML |
| Mar 2020 | 04/22/2020, 3:38:45 PM | | 04/22/2020, 3:42:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML |
| Dec 2019 | 01/21/2020, 3:48:23 PM | | 01/21/2020, 3:58:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML |
| Sep 2019 | 10/23/2019, 12:33:27 PM | | 10/23/2019, 12:40:00 PM | | Certified PDF XML |
| hun 2010 | 07/22/2019, 12:28:36 PM | | 07/22/2019, 12:38:00 PM | | Cardified PDE VMI |

Figure 8 - Credit Union Profile Module

- 2. **Navigate** to the current Profile and make the desired changes to the credit union Profile.
- 3. **Select** the "Certify and Submit" button, as seen in *Certifying the Credit Union Profile*.

Note: While users may click through the Profile tabs without selecting the "Save" button or allowing the auto save countdown to complete, navigating away from the Profile without saving changes will result in data loss.

| Profile Call Report | | | Errors: 0 Warnings |
|--------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|-------------------------|
| | | View/Print Certified PDF Instruction | Certify and Submit Save |
| General Contacts Sites P | SSP Information Technology Regulatory | Business Continuity Programs & Services Gran | ts Merge Registry |
| General Credit Union Inf | ormation | | Edit Print ? |
| Charter Number | 227 | Credit Committee Type* | No Committee |
| Credit Union Name | PENTAGON | EIN* | 53-0197038 |
| Credit Union Type | FCU | RSSD | 546571 |
| Status | Active | Member of FHLB | 15 |
| Year Chartered | 1935 | Borrows from FRB | - CD - |
| Date Insured | 01/04/1971 | Pledged Collateral With FRB | 10 |
| Region | 8 - ONES | Does your credit union sponsor a qualified defined benefit plan? | Yes T |
| - 22 | E. | Does your credit union participate in | 01- |

Figure 9 - Profile Certify and Submit Button

Certification Help Tips

<u>Quarterly Certification Rule</u>: Each operating insured credit union must file with the NCUA a quarterly Call Report. Credit unions must review and certify the information in their Profile at least quarterly during the Call Report cycle and verify the information is accurate. A Credit Union may certify the Profile more frequently. CUOnline will prompt a user to certify the Profile. Users will not be able to submit the Call Report until the Profile is certified. This requirement will be completed within CUOnline.

<u>Error Messages During Certification:</u> If there are error message while trying to certify the Profile then these must be corrected. To correct errors, go to the Profile and enter the missing information. Most errors occur because the required information was not entered into the Profile.

<u>Technical Assistance</u>: If all errors are corrected and the system cannot certify the Profile or there are technical difficulties, contact OneStop, the NCUA IT Service Desk, at 1-800-827-3255.

Downloading Profile Information

Users can download an XML file for a credit union containing all Profile data for one cycle.

Note: Only Credit Union administrators can download the Profile XML data.

- 1. Select the desired credit union.
- On the "Profile Snapshots" page, select the "XML" button next to the Profile name to download, as seen in *Figure 10 - "Profile Snapshot" Page "XML" Button*. Based on the web browser used to access CUOnline, a window will open prompting the user to open, save, or cancel the XML download.

| Profile Call | Report | | | | | | | |
|--|----------------------------------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--|--|--|
| Profile Snapshot | ts | | | | ? | | | |
| Charter Number | Charter Number Credit Union Name | | | | | | | |
| This page provides users with a PDF snapshot of the profiles as of the day the Call Report is initially submitted for a specific cycle. To view this file, click on the PDF button below. To view or edit the current credit union profile, click on the Current Profile link below. | | | | | | | | |
| Cycle Date | Last Certification Date | Certified By | Submission Date | Call Report Certifier | Save As | | | |
| Current Profile | 04/28/2021. 6:46:16 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Mar 2021 | 04/28/2021, 6:46:16 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Dec 2020 | 01/30/2021. 5:58:14 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Sep 2020 | 10/21/2020, 7:44:48 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| lun 2020 | 07/26/2020. 2:02:45 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Mar 2020 | 04/25/2020. 9:01:03 FM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Dec 2019 | 01/26/2020, 3:20:25 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |
| Fee 2010 | 10/27/2019, 7:34:28 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | | |

Figure 10 - "Profile Snapshot" Page "XML" Button

Printing

The Profile can be printed to PDF from two different locations in CUOnline. This section covers the following topics:

- Print Profile PDF from the Profile Snapshots Page
- Print Profile PDF from the Profile Tabs

Print Profile PDF from the Profile Snapshots Page

The certified Profile can be printed from the "Profile Snapshots" page by following the instructions listed below:

- 1. Navigate to the "Profile Snapshots" page.
- 2. **Select** the "Certified PDF" button for any cycle, as seen in *Figure 11 "Profile Snapshot" Page "Certified PDF" Button and PDF Download*. Depending on the user's individual web browser settings, the browser will prompt the user to save or download the selected file to the user's computer.

| Profile Call R | Report | | | | | | |
|---|--|-------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Profile Snapshot | Profile Snapshots 2 | | | | | | |
| Charter Number Credit Union Name | | | | | | | |
| This page provides users with on the Current Profile link be | h a PDF snapshot of the profiles as of the da clow. | y the Call Report is initially subm | itted for a specific cycle. To view this file, | click on the PDF button below. To view o | r edit the current credit union profile, click | | |
| Cycle Date | Last Certification Date | Certified By | Submission Date | Call Report Certifier | Save As | | |
| Current Profile | 04/28/2021, 6:46:16 PM | | | - | Certified PDF XML | | |
| Mar 2021 | 04/28/2021, 6:46:16 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |
| Dec 2020 | 01/30/2021, 5:58:14 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |
| 5ep 2020 | 10/21/2020. 7:44:48 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |
| hum.2020 | 07/26/2020, 2:02:45 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |
| Mar 2020 | 04/25/2020, 9:01:03 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |
| Dec 2019 | 01/26/2020. 3:20:25 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |
| Sep 2019 | 10/27/2019, 7:34:28 PM | | | | Certified PDF XML | | |

Figure 11 - "Profile Snapshot" Page "Certified PDF" Button and PDF Download

Print Profile PDF from the Profile Tabs

The certified Profile can also be printed from any of the Profile tabs for the Current Profile. Please follow the instructions below:

- 1. **Navigate** to any Profile tab, by **selecting** the Current Profile from the "Profile Snapshots" page.
- 2. **Select** the "View/Print Certified PDF" button in the banner on any of the Profile tabs, as seen in *Figure 12* "*Profile*" *Tab* "*View/Print Certified PDF*" *Button and PDF Download*. Depending on the user's individual web browser settings, the browser will prompt the user to save or download the PDF file to the user's computer.

| Profile Call Report | | | Errors: 0 Warnings: 1 |
|--|-----------------------------|--|---|
| | | View/Print Certified PDF | nstruction Certify and Submit Save |
| General Contacts Sites | PSSP Information Technology | Regulatory Disaster Recovery Programs & Servi | ces Grants Merger Registry |
| General Credit Union Int | formation | | Print |
| Charter Number | | Credit Committee Type* | |
| Credit Union Name | | EIN* | |
| Credit Union Type | FOL | RSSD | |
| Status | Active | Member of FHLB | |
| Year Chartered | | Borrows from FRB | |
| Date Insured | | Pledged Collateral With FRB | |
| Region | | Does your credit union sponsor a qualified with the sponsor a dualified the sp | u |
| Charter State (State Credit Union Only) | | Does your credit union participate in a multiemployer defined benefit plan? | α. ···································· |
| Field Of Membership Type | | | |
| ton have been dealer | | | |

Figure 12 - "Profile" Tab "View/Print Certified PDF" Button and PDF Download

5300 CALL REPORT

On the first day of each Call Report cycle, all active credit unions will have a pending Call Report for that cycle. The first day of the Call Report cycle is the first day following the cycle end date (in other words, January 1st, April 1st, July 1st, and October 1st).

Note: Credit union administrators and users can either import data into the pending Call Report or begin entering data. See the <u>Import Call Report Data</u> section of this guide for more information about importing Call Report data.

This chapter addresses the following tasks associated with the Call Report:

- <u>Call Report Tab</u>
- Call Report Tips
- Completing a Call Report
- Submitting a Call Report
- <u>Correcting Call Reports</u>
- Downloading Call Report Information
- Printing Call Reports

Call Report Tab

This section addresses the following topics:

- Edit Third Party Assistance Information
- Call Report Status

Edit Third Party Assistance Information

Authorized users can edit a credit union's third-party assistance information, including Credit Union Administrators. To edit this information:

1. **Navigate** to the "Call Report" tab and **select** "Edit" at the top of the page under "Filing Information", as seen in *Figure 13 - Call Report Page Edit Filing Information*.

| CHINA CONTRACTOR | | | | | | | - | ell Check |
|---|---|----------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------|---|-----------|
| Profile | Call Report | | | | | | | |
| Charter Number | | You | r Call Report is in Pendi | ing status and is due in -4 | 6 day(s). | Credi | t Union Name | |
| Filing Informa | tion | | | | | | | |
| Filing Type | Oritors Uker | - | | | | | | |
| Does the credit unio | on use a third party t | to assist with updating th | ne profile and/or call reg | port2 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | | |
| Edit | hmissions | | | | | | | 2 |
| Edit Call Report Su | bmissions | | | | | | | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty | bmissions /pes | | | | | | | 2 |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date | bmissions /pes Status | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Save As | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 | bmissions /pes Status Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No | Save As PDF XML | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Pending Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No | Save As PDF XML PDF XML | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 Jun 2020 | period status Pending Pending Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No No | Save As PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 Jun 2020 Mar 2020 | bmissions rpes Status Pending Pending Pending Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No No Yes | Save As PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML FPR | 2 |

Figure 13 - Call Report Page Edit Filing Information

2. Check the box if the credit union uses a third party to assist with updating the Profile and/or Call Report and **select the** "OK" button to save changes as seen in *Figure 14 - Edit Filing Information Screen*.

| 8 | Credit Union Online | My Credit Union My Ac | count | J Admin 6+ Logout |
|---|---|--|--------------------------------------|---|
| Profile | Call Report | | | |
| Charter Numb | r Your C | all Report is in Pending status and is due in 65 day(s). | Credit Union Name | 10 |
| Filing Inform Filing Type | nation | | | |
| Does the credit | union use a third party to assist with updating the | profile and/or call report? 🗍 🚽 | | |
| | cei | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Accessibility Privacy NCUA.gov v4.0 | 21145.8 | | National Credit Union Administration | on. 1775 Duke Street. Alexandria. VA 22314-3428 |

Figure 14 - Edit Filing Information Screen

Call Report Status

<u>Pending</u>: When the Call Report cycle begins all Call Reports will be in *Pending* status. If an active credit union does not have a Call Report in *Pending* status the credit union must Start a Call Report, which will be in *Pending* status. If a credit union is Correcting Call Reports, once the correction process begins the Call Report will be in *Pending* status. A Call Report must be in *Pending* or *Under Review* status to make changes.

<u>Processing</u>: When the credit union submits a Call Report, the submission status changes from *Pending* to *Processing*. If the Call Report status is *Processing*, the credit union sent the Call Report to the NCUA and it will be processed in the order received. Once the NCUA's systems process the Call Report, the status changes to *Submitted* and the Call Report Contact(s) for the credit union and the assigned examiner(s) will receive the FPR via email.

A similar process is in place when the regulator validates a Call Report. Once the regulator locks the Call Report and clicks "Validate," the Call Report status changes to *Processing*. Once the NCUA's systems process the Call Report, the status will change to *Validated*.

<u>Submitted:</u> Submitted Call Reports are ready for review and validation. An examiner or credit union can "Unsubmit" the Call Report to make changes. When the credit union clicks "Unsubmit" in CUOnline, the Call Report goes back to *Pending* status. All Call Reports in *Submitted* status at 10:00:01 PM and 12:00:01 AM Eastern time will be automatically validated.

<u>Under Review</u>: The regulator locked the Call Report for review and validation. When a user locks a Call Report, credit unions cannot make any changes to it. Users can "unlock" a Call Report by clicking the "Unlock" button. When this occurs, the status changes to *Submitted* and the credit union can *Unsubmit* the Call Report to make changes.

<u>Validated:</u> The regulator verified the Call Report. Users can correct a validated Call Report, but users cannot delete it from the system. Once a Call Report is validated, it is available to the public.

Call Report Tips

- A Call Report must be in *Pending* or *Under Review* status to add or correct data.
- In CUOnline, all Call Report fields must have a value, even if that value is zero.
- The system will mask all monetary and integer fields to separate the thousands (for example, 1,000).
- Use Control + F to find account codes. Once found, the account code font will be blue.
- Users may hover over an account code to see account level context-sensitive help.
- Only enter decimal places when entering interest rates, risk weights, and Credit Equivalent Risk Weight Allocations on the Call Report.
- Account codes that have triggered errors and warnings are denoted in purple.
- To view any errors, and warnings, select the "Errors", "Historical Errors" or "Warnings/Historical Warnings" links at the top of the page. The errors and warnings refresh during data entry. As data is entered, the number of errors and warnings will fluctuate.
- Account 719 Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses or Account AS0048 Allowance for Credit Losses when adding an entry for this field; enter it as a positive number if it has a credit balance on the balance sheet. For example, enter 10000 in CUOnline if the value on the credit union's balance sheet is -10,000.
- Account 119 Less Interest Refund when adding an entry for this field; enter it as a positive number if it has a credit balance on the balance sheet. For example, enter 10000 in CUOnline if the value on the credit union's balance sheet is -\$10,000.

Complete a 5300 Call Report

On the first day of each Call Report cycle, all active credit unions have a pending Call Report for that cycle. The first day of the Call Report cycle is the first day following the cycle end date (in other words, January 1st, April 1st, July 1st, and October 1st). This section covers the following topics:

- Enter 5300 Call Report Data
- Import Call Report Data

Enter 5300 Call Report Data

To begin entering Call Report data, follow the steps below. Users also have the option of importing Call Report data via XML, if preferred. Use the *Import Call Report Data* section of this document for guidance.

1. **Navigate** to the "Call Report" tab and **select** the cycle date to be modified, as seen in *Figure 15 - Call Report Submissions Page*.

Note: To edit a Call Report, it must be in *Pending* status.

| | Credit Union | Online | | My Credit Union | My Account | | Spell Check | off |
|---|---|-------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------|--|-----|
| Profile | Call Report | | | | | | | |
| Charter Number | p | Your | r Call Report is in Pendi | ng status and is due in -4 | 6 day(s). | Credi | t Union Name | - |
| Filing Type Does the credit unit | Continue Filocion use a third party to | assist with updating th | ne profile and/or call rep | sort? | | | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | | |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR To | bmissions rpes | | | | | | | 2 |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date | bmissions /pes Status | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Save As | 2 |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No | Save As PDF XML | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 | bmissions /pes Status Pending Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No | Save As PDF XML PDF XML | 2 |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 Jun 2020 | bmissions /pes Status Pending Pending Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No No | Save As PDF_XML PDF_XML PDF_XML | 2 |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 Jun 2020 Mar 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Pending Pending Pending Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No No Yes | Save As PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML FPR | 2 |

Figure 15 - Call Report Submissions Page

2. **Select** the page number to be modified, as seen in *Figure 16 - Call Report Detail Page*

Note: The page numbers across the top of the "Call Report Detail" page are links to each individual page of the Call Report.

An orange highlight on the page number identifies pages of the Call Report that have Call Report errors. Page numbers are highlighted in *blue* to indicate the page the user is editing or viewing. For example, *Figure 16 - Call Report Detail Page*, indicates that the user is on page 3 and that there are errors on page 2, 4, and 7 of the Call Report.

| Profile Call Report | | | | | | | | | | | | | Em | ors: 3 Warning | s/Historical W | arnings: 15 |
|--|-------------------------------|-----------|---------|-------|--------|-----|--------|--------|--------|-------|---------|----------------|------------|----------------|----------------|-------------|
| Call Report Detail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ? |
| Charter Number CU | âmè | | | | | | | | | Vie | w/Print | PDF | Instruct | ion Impo | t Call Report | Save |
| Cycle Date Dec 2020 Call | eport Status | Pending | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Info 1 2 3 4 | 5 6 7 | 8 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 1 | 7 | 18 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | | |
| | | I CIL I C | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | - |
| Statement of Financial | Condition (| ntinued) | (This p | age m | ust be | com | pleted | by all | credit | inior | is.) | | | | Prin | it <u>?</u> |
| LIABILITIES: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | A. < | 1 Year | B1. 1 | 3 Years | B2. > 3 Year | s C. Total Am | nount |
| 1. Draws Against Lines of C | dit | | | | | | | | 8 | AE8 | | 883B1 | - | 883B2 | 883C | |
| | | | | | | | | | | _ | \$0 | _ | \$0 | \$ | 0 | \$0 |
| | Notes and Interest | Payable | | | | | | | 0 | 11A | | 011B1 | - | 01182 | 0110 | |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory | | | | | | | | | | 59.4 | 20 | 05921 | 20 | 05982 | 0580 | 10 |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory | insactions | | | | | | | | ŕ | 200 | \$0 | 03001 | \$0 | \$ | 0 | 20 |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory 3. Borrowing Repurchase T | insactions | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1.1.000 | | |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory 3. Borrowing Repurchase T 4. Subordinated Debt | insactions | | | | | | | | 8 | 67A | | 86781 | | 86782 | 867C | _ |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory 3. Borrowing Repurchase T 4. Subordinated Debt | insactions | | | | | | | | 8 | 67A | \$0 | 86781 | \$0 | 86782 | 867C | 50 |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory 3. Borrowing Repurchase T 4. Subordinated Debt 5. Subordinated Debt inclu | ed in Net Worth | | | | | | | | 18 | 67A | \$0 | 96781 925A1 | \$0 | 925A2 | 925A | 60 |
| 2. Other Notes, Promissory 3. Borrowing Repurchase T 4. Subordinated Debt 5. Subordinated Debt inclu | insactions ed in Net Worth | | | | | | | _ | 8 | 67A | \$0 | 96781 | \$0 \$0 | 925A2 | 925A | 50 |

Figure 16 - Call Report Detail Page

3. After entering all Call Report information across all Call Report pages, **select** the "Errors", "Historical Errors", or "Warnings/Historical Warnings" links at the top of the page, as seen in *Figure 17 - Call Report Page Errors and Warnings Links*.

| Ø | CUOnline | e | | | 1 | - | | | | - | | | | | | | Welco | me | Spell | Check | Logout |
|------------------|-----------------|------------------|--------|-------------|---------|-----------|-----------|---------|---------|-----------|---------|------------|----------|--------|----------|-----------|---------|----------|----------|----------|-----------|
| Profile | Call Report | | | | | | | | | | | 7 ° | rrors: 5 | Hist | orical E | irrors: (| 0 Warn | ings/H | istoric | al Wan | ningst 12 |
| Call Report | Detail | | | | | | | | | / | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Charter Number | 1000 | CU Name | | | | | | | | | Vi | ew/Prin | nt PDF | | Instruc | tion | Imp | oort Ca | III Repo | ort | Save |
| ycle Date | Dec 2023 | Call Report Stat | tus PE | NDING | | | | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | |
| Info 1 | 2 3 4 | 5 6 7 | 8 | 9 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 |
| 28 | | | _ | | - | - | - | | | _ | | | - | | | | _ | | | | |
| Call Report In | nformation | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Drint |
| Charter Name | | | | | | CU Num | iber | | | | | | | | | | | | | | mint |
| Cycle Date | Dec 202 | 23 | | | | Call Rep | ort State | IS PE | NDING | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Submission D | ate | | | | | Is Correc | ction | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Dat | te | | | | 10 | Certifier | t. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Cor | mment | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Su | ubmit | De | elete |
| Table of Con | itents | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Pag | e# |
| STATEMENT | OF FINANCIAL | CONDITION - A | SSETS | (This page | must k | e comp | pleted b | y all c | redit u | nions.) | | | | | | | | | | 1 | |
| STATEMENT | | CONDITION - A | ASSETS | (continued) |) (This | page m | aust be | comp | leted b | y all cre | dit uni | ons.) | | | | | | | | 2 | |
| essibility Pri | ivacy NCUA.go | v v4.0.24005 | .4 | | | | | | N | ational | Credi | t Unior | n Admi | nistra | ition. 1 | 775 Du | uke Str | eet. Ale | exandr | ia. VA i | 22314-342 |

Figure 17 - Call Report Page Errors and Warnings Links

4. A Validation Results window will open listing all errors and warnings, as seen in *Figure 18 - Call Report Errors and Warnings Validation Results*. **Correct** all errors and **enter** comments for warnings.

- Errors: The Errors Tab displays a count and detailed explanation of any errors that triggered during data entry. The orange highlighting on the Call Report Detail page navigation bar also identifies the page(s) that have errors. Users can click on the referenced page to go directly to the page with errors. <u>Users</u> <u>cannot successfully submit the Call Report until all errors are</u> <u>corrected.</u>
- Historical Errors: The Historical Errors tab displays a count and detailed explanation of any historical errors that triggered during data entry. Review and correct the historical errors. <u>Users cannot successfully</u> submit the Call Report until all historical errors are corrected.
- Warnings: The Warnings Tab displays the count and detailed explanation of any warnings that triggered during data entry. Review the warnings and make any necessary corrections. Delete, copy, paste and backspace can all be used when responding to warnings. Users can click on the referenced page to go directly to the page with errors. <u>Users must provide a comment</u> for all warnings to submit the Call <u>Report</u>.
- Historical Warnings: The Historical Warnings tab displays the count and detailed explanation of any historical warnings that triggered during data entry. Review the historical warnings and make any necessary corrections. Delete, copy, paste, and backspace can all be used when responding to historical warnings.

| it Union Name Charter Number | Cycle Date | | Expo | rt To Excel Save PDF | Close |
|---------------------------------|---|--|----------|----------------------|------------|
| Errors(3) Alistorical Errors(1) | Warnings(3) | Historical Warnings(32) | | | |
| dit Code | Error Messa | qe | Pages | | |
| 0025 | Total liabiliti 014, 010). | es, shares and equity must equal total assets (accounts | 23, 2, 3 | | |
| 92201 | Assets (010) indicated wi | are greater than \$500,000,000 but you have not nether are not you are electing CCUER (LR0001) | 23, 2 | | |
| 92292 | Gain (Loss) c all other inv (ISO047). | in Investments (NV0162) is not equal to Gain (Loss) on estments or change in fair value of hedged items | 5, 16 | | |
| | | | | 1-3 | of 3 items |

Figure 18 - Call Report Errors and Warnings Validation Results

Import Call Report Data

The NCUA provides a schema for vendors and credit unions to develop software to import Call Report data into CUOnline each cycle. The NCUA posts this information on the <u>CUOnline</u> webpage at <u>www.NCUA.gov</u>. An XML file can be imported into CUOnline for *Pending* Call Reports only. Whenever data is imported, all account values in the XML file will overwrite the corresponding values in the *Pending* Call Report. For example, if the XML file only contains ten account codes, CUOnline will only overwrite these ten accounts in the pending Call Report. Accounts other than the ten in the XML file will be changed back to 0.

Additionally, CUOnline permits users to correct a previously imported file with a new one. Users can still edit the *Pending* Call Report after importing a file and are responsible for ensuring the data is accurate.

Credit unions may also import a file for a Call Report correction. The Call Report must be in *Pending* status. See the <u>Correcting Call Reports</u> section for details.

To import a Call Report XML file:

1. **Navigate** to the "Call Report" tab and **select** the cycle date for importing data, as seen in *Figure 19 - "Call Report" Tab Record Selection to Import Data*.

| No. | | | | - | | | Spell Check |
|---|--|----------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------|--|
| Profile | Call Report | | | | | | |
| Charter Number | | Your | Call Report is in Pendi | ng status and is due in -4 | 6 day(s). | Credi | t Union Name |
| Filing Informa Filing Type Does the credit unio | tion Online Filer | r | profile and/or call re | port? | | | |
| - | | | | | | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | |
| Edit Call Report Su | bmissions | | | | | | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty | bmissions ypes | | | | | | 3 |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date | bmissions ypes Status Su | Ibmission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | ? Save As |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Su Pending | abmission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | ? Save As PDF_XML |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Su Pending Pending | abmission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction Na No | ? Save As PDF_XML PDF_XML |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 Jun 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Su Pending Pending | ubmission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction Na No No | ? Save As PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR Ty Cycle Date Dec 2020 Sep 2020 Jun 2020 Mar 2020 | bmissions ypes Status Su Pending Pending Pending Pending | Ibmission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction Na No No Yes | ? Save As PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML PDF XML |

Figure 19 - "Call Report" Tab Record Selection to Import Data

2. **Select** the "Import Call Report" button on any of the Call Report Detail screens, as seen in *Figure 20 - "Import Call Report" Button*.

| Profile Call | Report | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Errors: | Warnings/Historical | Warnings: 15 |
|----------------------|------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------|--------|----------|---------|----------|----------|----------|----|----|-------|----------|----|----------------------------|---------------------|--------------|
| Call Report Detail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ? |
| Charter Number | CU Name | | | - | | | | | | | | View/ | Print Pl | DF | Instruction | Import Call Report | t Save |
| Cycle Date Dec 2020 | Call Report Sta | tus Pend | ling | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Info 1 2 | 4 5 | 6 7 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 22 | T | |
| Call Report Informat | ion | | | | | | | - | - | - | - | | | | Contraction of Contraction | | Dist |
| Charles Manua | | | | | cu. | Muserke | 3 | | | | | | | | | | FILLE |
| Cycle Date | Dec 2020 | | | | Cal | Repor | t Statue | Pendi | iner | | | | | | | | |
| Submission Date | 1100001 | | | | ls C | orrecti | on | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Date | | | | | Cer | tifier | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Comment | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Submit |
| Table of Content | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Page # |
| Statement of Einar | cial Condition (| This page must | he com | plata | d bu all | eradie | unlan | -1 | | | | | | | | | - age - |
| Statement of Finan | cial condition (| this page mus | becom | preter | u by an | creun | union | 3-1 | | | | | | | | | |
| Statement of Finar | cial Condition (| continued) (Th | is page n | nust | be com | pleted | by all | credit u | inions.) | | | | | | | 4 | 2 |
| Statement of Finan | cial Condition (| continued) (Th | is page n | nust l | be com | pleted | by all | credit u | inions.) |) | | | | | | 1 | 3 |
| | | 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | | | | | | Sec. | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 20 - "Import Call Report" Button

3. Browse for the file and **select** the "Save" button, as seen in *Figure 21* - "*Call Report Information*" *Import File Page*.

Note: Once the file has been imported, verify all data imported correctly. Users are still responsible for correcting errors, commenting on all warnings, and submitting the Call Report.

| 8 | Corporate Credit Union Online | CU Search | SSA | Assignments | Administration | Welcome Admin, NCUA G+ Logout Spell Check OFF |
|----------------------|----------------------------------|-----------|------------|-------------|-----------------|---|
| Profile | Call Report | | | | | |
| Charter Number: | Credit Union Name: | | Cycle Date | : Jun 2020 | | |
| Call Report Info | rmation | | | | | ? |
| Charter Number: | | | | | | |
| Credit Union Nar | ne: | | | | | |
| Cycle Date: | Jun 2020 | | | | | |
| Import File: | Choose File a.xml | | | | | |
| Save Ca | ncel | | | | | |
| / Privacy NCUA doy | v29044 4 210226 | | | | National Credit | Union Administration, 1775 Duke Street, Alexandria, V |

Figure 21 - "Call Report Information" Import File Page

Submit a Call Report

After entering or importing all relevant data in each of the applicable Call Report pages, correcting any errors, and commenting on all warnings, users may submit the Call Report.

Follow these steps to submit the Call Report:

1. **Select** the Call Report Cycle to be submitted, as seen in *Figure 22 - Select Call Report to Submit.*

Note: The Call Report must be in *Pending* status and must be free of errors before submitting, as seen in *Submit a Call Report*.



Figure 22 - Select Call Report to Submit

2. Select the "Submit" button, as seen in Figure 23 - Call Report Page Submit Button.

Note: If the submit button is not active, there are errors in the Call Report, comments have not been provided on all warnings, or the Profile has not been saved and certified. These issues must be addressed before continuing to the next step.



Figure 23 - Call Report Page Submit Button

3. **Complete** the Submit Call Report screen and **select** the Submit button, as seen in *Figure 24 - Submit Call Report Screen*.

Note: The Managing Officials or Chief Financial Officer is responsible for accuracy of this information.

When a user submits the Call Report, the Submission Status changes from *Pending* to *Processing*. If the Call Report status is *Processing*, the Call Report has been sent to the NCUA and we will process it in the order received. Once the NCUA's systems process the Call Report, the status will change to *Submitted* and the Call Report contact(s) for the credit union and the assigned examiner(s) will receive the FPR by email.

| | Credit Union Onli | ine | My Credit Union My Account | Spell Check |
|-----|---|---|---|---|
| Ne | xt auto save in 4:15 | | | |
| | Profile Call Report | | | Errors: 0 Warnings/Historical Warnings: 8 |
| Ca | all Report Detail | Submit Call Repor | rt | × 7 |
| Ch | arter Number CU Name | Charter Number Credit Union Name | | truction Import Call Report Save |
| cy. | cie Date Mar 2020 Can Report Status | Cycle Date | Mar 2020 | a last |
| | Info 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 | Submission Status | Pending | 22 |
| 5 | Charter Name Cycle Date Mar 2020 Submission Date Validation Date | is not accurate, I underst the discovery of a need f including material omissi Credit Union Administrat under 18 U.S.C. 1006. | and I am requited to submit a corrected Call Report upon notification for correction. I understand false entries and report or statement, ions, with intent to injure or defauato the credit unions, the National tion, its examiners, or other individuals or companies is punishable | or |
| ١ | Validation Comment | Certifier First Name | | Submit |
| | Table of Contents | Certifier Last Name | | Page # |
| | Statement of Financial Condition (This page | | | 1 |
| | Statement of Financial Condition (continue | | Submit Can | cel 2 |
| | Statement of Financial Condition (continue | d) (This page must be con | mpleted by all credit unions.) | 3 |
| | Statement of Financial Condition (continue | d) (This page must be con | mpleted by all credit unions.) | 4 |
| | STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSE (Th | is name must be complete | ed by all credit unions.) REPORT VEAR-TO-DATE NUMBERS F | |

Figure 24 - Submit Call Report Screen

4. Upon successful submission, a "Call Report Submission Confirmation" pop-up will appear. See *Figure 25 - Call Report Submission Confirmation Pop-up*.



Figure 25 - Call Report Submission Confirmation Pop-up

Correcting Call Reports

FICUs must submit a corrected Call Report upon discovery or notification of the need for a change. Users can make corrections on up to four years of previous Call Report cycles within CUOnline. In the event of a need to correct a Call Report that is not editable in CUOnline, users will contact their assigned NCUA Examiner or State Regulator. The process for correcting validated or submitted Call Reports is described below.

Note: If the status of the Call Report is *Under Review*, the regulator is reviewing the Call Report to validate it. Users cannot make a Call Report correction when it has a status of *Under Review*.

Correcting Not Validated, Status is Submitted Call Reports

Follow these steps to correct a Call Report that has not been validated when the Call Report is in Submitted status.

1. **Select** the "Call Report" tab and **select** the cycle date of the relevant Call Report, as seen in *Figure 26 - "Call Report" Tab Not Validated, Submitted Record.*

| Profile | Call Report | | | | | | | |
|--|---|-------------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------|------------------------------|--|-----|
| Charter Number: | | | Your Call Report is | in Pending status and is du | e in 50 day(s). | | Credit Union Na | me: |
| Filing Informa Filing Type Does the credit uni | otion | • o assist with updating th | ne profile and/or call r | report? | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | | |
| Edit Call Report Su | Ibmissions | | | | | | | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR 1 | Ibmissions ypes | | | | | | - | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR 1 Cycle Date | abmissions ypes Status | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Save As | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR T Cycle Date Mar 2021 | Jbmissions Types Status Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No. | Save As PDF XML | ? |
| Edit Call Report Su Optional FPR 1 Cycle Date Mar 2021 Jan 2021 | Ibmissions Types Status Pending Submitted | Submission Date 03-01-2021 | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No | Save As PDF XML PDF XML FPR | ? |
| Edit Call Report St Optional FPR T Cycle Date Mar 2021 Jan 2021 Jul 2020 | ypes Status Pending Submitted Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No No | Save As PDF XML PDF XML FPR PDF XML | ? |

Figure 26 - "Call Report" Tab Not Validated, Submitted Record

2. **Select** the "Unsubmit" button on any Call Report Detail page, as seen in *Figure 27* - "Unsubmit" Call Report Button.

Note: The Call Report status changes from *Submitted* to *Pending* once the "Unsubmit" button is selected. A Call Report must be in *Pending* status to make necessary corrections. If corrections are no longer required after switching the Call Report to *Pending* status, users must select the "Submit" button again to change the Call Report back to *Submitted* status. This <u>will not</u> delete any validated Call Reports.

| | cuo | Inlin | ie | | | | | | My | Credit I | Union | N | ly Acco | unt | | | | | | | | 8 | Spe | ll Check | OFF |
|-----------------|----------|--------|------|-------|-------|------|---------|------|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|--------|----|--------|---------|-------|----------|----------|---------|---------|--------|----------|------------|
| Profile | Call Re | port | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Errors | : 0 H | istorica | al Error | s: 0 Wa | iming | /Histo | orical V | /amings: 5 |
| Call Report | Detail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| Charter Number | Mar 20 | | CU N | lame | | 1 | UDINT | 150 | | | | | | | V | iew/Pr | int PDF | | Instru | ction | - Ia | nport C | all Re | port | Save |
| Info 1 | 2 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 |
| 28 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Call Report In | formatio | n | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Print |
| Charter Name | | Mér 20 | 2.4 | | | | | | | CU Num | ort Stat | ter Cult | mitting | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Submission Da | te | mai 20 | 24 | | | | | | 1 | s Corre | ction | | dintied. | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Date | | | | | | | | | 1.0 | Certifie | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Com | iment | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - | + | Un | subm | iit | Lock |
| Table of Cont | ents | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | P | age # |
| STATEMENT | OF FINA | NCIAL | COND | OITIO | N - A | SSET | S (This | page | must b | e com | pleted b | y all c | redit un | ions.) | | | | | | | | | | 1 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 27 - "Unsubmit" Call Report Button

3. Correct any errors and provide a comment on any warnings by selecting the "Errors", "Historical Errors", or "Warnings" links, as seen in *Figure 28 - Call Report Errors and Warnings Table*. **Select** "Save" to save changes.

| alidation Results | | | | | A | |
|-------------------|----------------------|--|---|----------|-----------------|------------------|
| edit Union Name | Charter Number | Cycle Date | | | Export To Excel | Save PDF Close |
| A Errors(3) | Historical Errors(1) | Warnings(3) | Historical Warnings(32) | | | |
| Edit Code | | Error Mess | age | Pages | | |
| £0025 | | Total liabili 014, 010). | ties, shares and equity must equal total assets (accounts | 23, 2, 3 | | |
| E92201 | | Assets (01) indicated | 0) are greater than \$500,000,000 but you have not whether are not you are electing CCULR (LR0001) | 23, 2 | | |
| E92292 | | Gain (Loss, all other in (IS0047). |) on investments (NV0162) is not equal to Gain (Loss) on vestments or change in fair value of hedged items | 5, 16 | | |
| 4 + 3 + | ы | | | | | 1 - 3 of 3 items |

Figure 28 - Call Report Errors and Warnings Table

4. **Select** "Submit" to re-submit the Call Report, as seen in *Figure 29* - "*Call Report*" *Page Submit Call Report*. Reference the <u>Submit a Call Report</u> section for more information.

| Profile Call Report | | Errors: 0 Warnings/Historical Warnings: 0 |
|--|-------------------------------------|---|
| Call Report Detail | | ? |
| Charter Number: CU Name: | | View/Print PDF Instruction Import Call Report |
| Cycle Date: Jul 2020 Call Report Status: Pending | | |
| Info 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 11 12 13 14 | |
| Call Report Information | and the second second second second | Print |
| Charter Name: | CU Number: | |
| Cycle Date: Jul 2020 | Call Report Status: Pending | |
| Submission Date: | Is Correction: | |
| Validation Date: | Certifier: | |
| Validation Comment: | | Submit Delete |
| Table of Content | | Page # |
| STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION | | 1 * |
| INCOME STATEMENT | | 2 |
| INVESTMENT DETAIL | | 3 |
| DERIVATIVES | | 4 |
| ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT INFORMATION | | |

Figure 29 - "Call Report" Page Submit Call Report

5. **Confirm** the Call Report was re-submitted, as seen in *Figure 30 - "Call Report Submission Confirmation" Pop-up.*

| | cuc | nline | 3 | | | | M | y Cred | lit Unio | n | Му Асс | ount | | | | | | | Weld | ome | Spe | je I Check | + Logout |
|--|---------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------|-----------|---------|--------------|-------------|--------------------|---------------|------------------|--------------|----------|----------|-------------|---------------|----------|----------|------------------------|--------|------------------|---------------|-------------|
| Profile | Call Re | eport | | | | | | | | | | | | | Erre | <u>ots:</u> 0 | listoria | cal Erro | <u>ors:</u> 0 <u>V</u> | Varnin | g <u>s/His</u> t | orical | Warnings: 5 |
| Call Report Charter Number Cycle Date | 63194 Mar 20 | 25 | CU Name Call Repo | e ort Stati | I us F | DAHO | CENTRA IG | L | | | | | V | /iew/P | rint PD | F (| Instru | uction | | mport | Call Re | port | Save |
| Info 1 | 2 3 | 4 | 5 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 Call | 11 Repor | 12 rt Subr | 13 nission | 14 1 Confirma | 5 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 × | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 |
| Call Report In Charter Name Cycle Date Submission D | nformatio ate | iDAHO Ci Mar 2025 | ENTRAL | | | | Your | Call Re | eport wa | as subm | nitted to Ne | CUA. At 2/2 | 28/2025 | , 1:44:0 | 06 PM OK | | | | | | | | Print |
| Validation Dat Validation Cor | te mment | | | | | | | C Is | ertifier Estima | ted | | | | | | | | | | | Subm | nit | Delete |
| Table of Con | ntents T OF FINA | ANCIAL C | ONDITI | 0N - 4 | ASSET | rs (Thi | s page n | nust b | e comp | oleted b | y all credi | t unions.) | | - | _ | - | _ | _ | - | | | 1 | Page # |
| STATEMEN | T OF FINA | ANCIAL C | ONDITI | ON - / | ASSET | rs (cor | itinued) | (This | page m | ust be | completed | l by all cro | edit uni | ons.) | | | | | | | | 2 | |
| STATEMEN | T OF FINA | | ONDITI | ON - L | IABI | LITIES | AND EQ | UITY | (This pa | ige mu | st be com | leted by | all cred | it unio | ns.) | | | | | | | 3 | |
| STATEMEN | T OF INCO | | EXPEN | ISE - II | NTER | EST IN | COME A | ND E | XPENSE | (This p | oage must | be compl | eted by | all cre | edit uni | ons.) | | | | | | 4 | |
| STATEMEN | TOFINC | | | SE N | ION-I | NTED | ST INCO | OME A | | DENISE | This page | must he | omnlo | tod by | all cros | lit unic | ane) | | | | | 5 | |

Figure 30 - "Call Report Submission Confirmation" Pop-up

Correcting Validated Call Reports

Follow these steps to correct a validated Call Report:

1. **Select** the "Call Report" tab and **select** the cycle date of the relevant Call Report to be corrected, as seen in *Figure 31* - "Call Report Submissions" Page.

| | all Report | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------|------------------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------|----------|--------------------|
| Charter Number: | | | Your Call Report i | s in Pending status and is a | due in 57 day(s). | | | Credit Union Name: |
| Filing Type | Online Filer | + Does t | he credit union use a | third party to assist with u | pdating the profile and/o | r call report? | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | | |
| Call Report Sub | missions | | | | | | C | Optional FPR Types |
| Cycle Date | Status | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Estimate | Save As |
| Jun 2024 | Pending | | | | | No | No | PDF XML |
| | | 04-30-2024 | | 04-30-2024 | System Validated | No | No | PDF XML FPR |
| Mar 2024 | Validated | | | | | | No | PDE XML EPR |
| Mar 2024 Dec 2023 | Validated Validated | 01-30-2024 | | 01-30-2024 | System Validated | No | 1402 | |
| Mar 2024 Dec 2023 Sep 2023 | Validated Validated Validated | 01-30-2024 01-31-2024 | | 01-30-2024 01-31-2024 | System Validated System Validated | Yes | No | PDF XML FPR |

Figure 31 - "Call Report Submissions" Page

2. Select the "Correct" button, as seen in Figure 32 - "Correct" Call Report Button.

| (| CUOnline | My Credit Union | My Account | Welcome | C+ Logout |
|------------------------------------|---|---|---|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Profile | Call Report | | | Errors: 0 Historical Errors: 0 Warnin | ngs/Historical Warnings: 6 |
| Call Report I Charter Number | CU Name | | | View/Pri | nt PDF Instruction |
| Cycle Date | Mar 2024 Call Report Status VALIDATED 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 11 12 13 | 14 15 16 17 14 | 8 19 20 21 22 23 2 | 4 25 26 27 |
| Call Report Info | ormation | | | | Print |
| Charter Name Cycle Date | Mar 2024 | CU Number Call Report Status | us VALIDATED | | |
| Submission Date Validation Date | e 04/30/2024 04/30/2024 | Is Correction Certifier | | | - |
| Table of Conte | nts | is Estimated | | | Page # |
| STATEMENT O | OF FINANCIAL CONDITION - ASSETS (This pag | e must be completed by ed) (This page must be co | y all credit unions.) completed by all credit unions.] | | 2 |
| STATEMENT C | OF FINANCIAL CONDITION - LIABILITIES AND | EQUITY (This page must | it be completed by all credit un | ions.) | 3 |
| ibility Privacy NCUA.gov | 4.0.24145.6 | CARD EXCERSE (This pa | inge must be completed by an o | National Credit Union Administration, | 1775 Duke Street, Alexandria, VA 223 |

Figure 32 - "Correct" Call Report Button

3. The Call Report status will change from Validated to Pending, as seen in Figure 33 - Two Status' for One Call Report (Pending & Validated).

Note: Users may notice there are two Call Reports listed for that cycle on the Main Call Report page – one will have a status of *Pending* and one will have a status of *Validated*, as seen in *Figure 33 - Two Status' for One Call Report (Pending & Validated)*. Once the assigned regulator validates the corrected Call Report, it will replace the previously validated Call Report.



Figure 33 - Two Status' for One Call Report (Pending & Validated)

4. Make any necessary corrections. If it is determined that corrections are no longer required after switching the Call Report to Pending status, users must select "Delete" on the "View Call Reports" screen to remove the pending Call Report, as seen in *Figure 34* - "Delete" Pending Call Report. This action can only be performed by a Credit Union Administrator.

| Profile | Call Re | port | | | | | | | | | | | | Errors | 0 Warnings/Histo | rical Wa | nings: 8 |
|------------------------------|----------|----------------------|-----------------|-----------|------------|----------|---------------|-------------|----------|--------|--------|------------|--------|-------------|------------------|----------|----------|
| Call Report I | Detail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Charter Number Cycle Date | 2 | CU Name Call Repo | e ert Status | PENDI | NG | | | | | | Vi | ew/Print F | PDF | Instruction | Import Call Re | port | Save |
| Info 1 2 | 3 | 4 4 | 5 6 7 | 8 | 9 10 | 11 | 12 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 19 | 20 | 21 22 | | | |
| Call Report Info | rmation | | | | | - | _ | _ | | | _ | | | | | | rint |
| Charter Name | | | | | | cu | Number | | | | | | | | | - | |
| Cycle Date | | | | | | Cal | Report Sta | tus PEND | ING | | | | | | | | |
| Submission Date | | | | | | Is C | Correction | . 11 | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Date | | | | | | Cer | rtifier | | | | | | | | | | |
| Validation Comm | ent | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Submi | t De | lete |
| Table of Conte | nts | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Pag | je# |
| Statement of | Financia | Condit | ion (This pa | ge must b | e complet | ed by al | I credit unio | ons.) | | | | | | | | 1 | ÷. |
| Statement of | Financia | Condit | ion (continu | ed) (This | page mus | be com | pleted by a | Il credit u | nions.) | | | | | | | 2 | 1.0 |
| Statement of | Financia | Condit | ion (continu | ed) (This | page mus | be com | pleted by a | Il credit u | nions.) | | | | | | | 3 | |
| Statement of | Financia | Condit | ion (continu | ed) (This | page mus | be com | pleted by a | Il credit u | inions.) | | | | | | | 4 | |
| STATEMENT C | FINCO | MEAND | EXPENSE (| his page | must be co | mplete | d by all cred | lit unions |) REPO | RT YEA | R-TO-D | ATE NUME | ERS FO | R THE CYCLE | | 5 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 34 - "Delete" Pending Call Report

5. Correct any errors identified in the "Errors", "Historical Errors", or "Warnings."

October 2024

Once complete, submit the Call Report. Once complete, submit the Call Report. Refer to the <u>Submit a Call Report</u> section for more information.

Downloading Call Report Information

Users can download an XML file for a credit union containing all Call Report data for one cycle.

Note: Only Credit Union administrators and users can download Call Report XML data.

- 1. **Select** the "Call Report" page for the selected credit union.
- 2. **Select** the "XML" button next to the cycle date of the Call Report to download, as seen in *Figure 35* "*Call Report*" *Tab* "*XML*" *Button*. Based on the web browser used to access CUOnline, a window will open prompting users to open, save, or cancel the XML download.

| rionie | Call Report | | | | | | | |
|---|--|----------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------------|--------------|-------------------------|--|---|
| Charter Number | | You | r Call Report is in Pend | ling status and is due in 66 | š day(s). | Credit | Union Name | _ |
| Filing Inform | ation | | | | | | | |
| Filing Type | Online Filer | - | | | | | | |
| Does the credit un | sion use a third party | to assist with updating th | e profile and/or call re | eport? | | | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Call Report S | ubmissions | | | | | | | 2 |
| Call Report S | ubmissions Types | | | | | | | ? |
| Call Report S Optional FPR Cycle Date | ubmissions Types Status | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Save As | ? |
| Call Report S Optional FPR Cycle Date Jun 2021 | ubmissions Types Status Pending | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Save As | 7 |
| Call Report S Optional FPR Jun 2021 Mar 2021 | ubmissions Types Status Pending Validated | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No No | Save As PDF XML + | ? |
| Call Report S Optional FPR Cycle Date Jun 2021 Mar 2021 Dec 2020 | ubmissions Types Status Pending Validated Validated | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction No Yes | Save As (PDF, XML) (PDF, XML) (FPR) (PDF, XML) (FPR) | ? |

Figure 35 - "Call Report" Tab "XML" Button

Printing Call Reports

The Call Report can be printed to PDF from two different locations in CUOnline. This section covers the following topics:

- Print Call Report PDF from the Call Report Page
- Print Call Report PDF from the Call Report Details Page

• Print Individual Call Report Pages

Print Call Report PDF from the Call Report Page

The Call Report can be printed from the Call Report Page by following the instructions listed below:

- 1. **Navigate** to the Call Report page by **selecting** the Call Report tab, after selecting a specific credit union.
- 2. **Select** the "PDF" button for the desired cycle date on the Call Report list page to print to PDF, as seen in *Figure 36* "*Call Report Page*" *PDF*. Depending on the user's individual web browser settings, the browser will prompt the user to save or download the selected file to the user's computer.

| 8 | Credit Unio | n Online | 1 | My Credit Union | My Account | | Welcome CU User | Logout |
|--|-----------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------|
| Profile | Call Report | | | | | | | |
| Charter Number | | You | r Call Report is in Pen | ding status and is due in 1 | 21 day(s). | Credi | t Union Name | |
| Filing Informa Filing Type Does the credit uni | Online Filer | assist with updating the | he profile and/or call r | eport? | | | | |
| Edit | | | | | | | | |
| Call Report Su | bmissions | | | | | | | ? |
| Optional FPR 1 | ypes | | | | | | | |
| Cycle Date | Status | Submission Date | Certified By | Validation Date | Validated By | Correction | Save As | |
| Jun 2021 | Pending | | | | | No | PDF XML | |
| Mar 2021 | Pending | | | | | No | PDF XML | |
| Dec 2020 | Validated | 01-30-2021 | - | 01-31-2021 | - | No | PDF XML FPR | |
| bility Privacy NCUA.gov v | /29425.4.210320 | | | | National (| redit Union Adı | ministration, 1775 Duke Str | eet, Alexandria, VA 2231 |
| Report June-2 ndf | - | | | | | | | Sho |

Figure 36 - "Call Report Page" PDF

Print Call Report PDF from the Call Report Details Pages

The Call Report can also be printed from any of the Call Report details pages. Please follow the instructions below:

- 1. **Navigate** to any Call Report details page, by **selecting** the cycle date for a specific Call Report from the Call Report page.
- 2. **Select** the "View/Print PDF" button in the banner on any of the Call Report Details pages as seen in *Figure 37* "*Call Report Details Page*" "*View/Print PDF*" *Button*. Depending on the user's individual web browser settings, the browser will prompt the user to save or download the selected file to the user's computer.



Figure 37 - "Call Report Details Page" "View/Print PDF" Button

Print Individual Call Report Pages

Each page of the Call Report can be printed as a stand-alone document by following the instructions below:

- 1. Navigate to the Call Report page to be printed.
- 2. **Select** the "Print" button at the top of the page, as seen in *Figure 38* "Print" Button on Individual Call Report Pages.

| Profile | 0 | all Re | port | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Errors: C | Warnings/Historical Warnings |
|---------------|--------|----------|-------------|-------------|------------|---------|------------|-----------|---------|---------|----------|-----------|---------|----------|---------|----------|-----|-------------|------------------------------|
| Call Repo | rt D | etail | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Charter Numbe | r | in i | CU Name | - | | | | | | | | | | | View/ | Print P | DF | Instruction | Import Call Report Sav |
| Cycle Date | Jun 2 | 021 | Call Report | Status | PEN | DING | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | |
| Info 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 5 | 6 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 22 | |
| Stateme | nt o | f Fin | ancial (| onditi | on (T | his I | page | must | be c | omp | leted | by a | ll cre | dit u | nion | s.) | - | | Print ? |
| ASSETS A | ccou | nting | Standards | Codific | tion To | nic 3 | 26 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ASSETS | iccou | ining . | Standarda | counic | | pic 5 | 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | Response |
| Have you | early | adopted | d ASC Topic | 326: Fina | icial Inst | rumen | nts - Crec | lit Losse | s (CECL | .)? | | | | | | | | | AS0010 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | No |
| NOTE - R | eview | the Call | Report Ins | tructions o | arefully i | f you l | have ear | ly adopt | ed ASC | Topic 3 | 26: Fina | ancial In | strumer | ts - Cre | dit Los | ses (CEC | L). | | |
| CASH | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Amount |
| 1. Cash o | 1 Hand | ł | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| a. Coin | and C | urrency | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | AS0004 \$499,750 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 38 - "Print" Button on Individual Call Report Pages

3. **Select** the "Printer" icon to print the page or **select** the "Close" button to close the print screen, as seen in *Figure 39* - "Printer" Icon on the Printer Ready Screen.

| Pr | int | | × + Logout |
|-----------------------------------|--|---------------------|--|
| | | 0 | - COFF |
| Profile | | 4 | _ Varnings; 10 |
| Call Repo | Call Report Page: 1 | | and the second sec |
| Charter Numbe Cycle Date | Statement of Financial Condition (This page must be completed by all credit unions.) | | Save |
| info 1 | ASSETS | | |
| Stateme | Accounting standards Codification Topic 320 | Response | 11 2 |
| ASSETS | Have you early adopted ASC Topic 326: Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (CECL)? | AS0010 0 | |
| Have you | NOTE - Review the Call Report Instructions carefully if you have early adopted ASC Topic 326: Financial Instruments - C (CECL) | Credit Losses | |
| NOTE - F | CASH | | |
| CASH | | Amount | |
| 1. Cash o | 1. Cash on Hand | | |
| a. Coir | a. Coin and Currency | AS0004 \$499,750 | |
| b. Cas | b. Cash trems in Process of Collection | AS0005 \$1,130 | |
| c. Tota | | | |
| Accessibility Privacy NCUA.go | | | Close reet, Alexandria, VA 22314-3428 |

Figure 39 - "Printer" Icon on the Printer Ready Screen

PASSWORD AND COMPUTER SECURITY BEST PRACTICES

Below are some basic security tips for using CUOnline to input Call Report and Profile data. Users are responsible for the security of their computer and their network.

NCUA Connect Password Help Tips

NCUA Connect password requirements:

- 1. At least 12 characters
- 2. An uppercase letter and a lowercase letter
- 3. At least one number
- 4. At least one symbol
- 5. No parts of your username
- 6. Does not include your first name
- 7. Does not include your last name

When resetting your password, you cannot use any of your last six passwords. At least one day must have passed since you last changed your password.

DOs and DON'Ts of Password Security

DO:

- Commit password to memory rather than writing it down. If written down, keep it in a safe place and separate from the username.
- Log out of the user account when finished using the system.

DON'T:

- Share password with anyone. If they need access, the assigned credit union administrator can establish a separate account in their name.
- Send user password in an email message.
- Send user password in an email message.
- Use dictionary words or names, even if spelled backwards.
- Use personal data, such as legal name, birth date, Social Security number, phone number, or address.
- Use the Username as any part of user passwords.
- Use the credit union name or charter number as a password.
- Save passwords in browser software or in an unprotected file.

Computer Security Information

- 1. Keep the operating system and other software patched by using the auto- update feature included with most software programs. Do not use unsupported or expired operating systems like Windows XP.
- 2. Use antivirus and antispyware software and keep it up to date. Because many viruses attack the antivirus software first, check periodically to make sure the software is downloading and installing pattern file updates.
- 3. Use either a personal firewall or a hardware firewall device ideally both. Make sure to activate any automatic update features. If using a hardware firewall, check the vendor's website regularly to see if updates are available for its firmware. If possible, sign up for email notices about critical updates from the vendor.
- 4. Configure web browsers to have medium or higher security.
- 5. Pay attention to the internet browser warnings.
- 6. Users should be mindful of the websites that they visit. Stick to websites operated by reputable people and companies. Visiting websites operated by less than reputable organizations could result in viruses or other malware installed on a computer without actively downloading anything.
- 7. Do not open unsolicited emails. Delete them.
- 8. Users will receive emails from the NCUA when using CUOnline. Users may also receive system notifications from NCUA Connect.
- 9. Do not open links in email unless it is from a trusted source. Opening links in email is the primary method for computer virus, spyware, and malware infections, some of which are so sophisticated they can take over a user's computer during and after hours.
- 10. Only input or upload data directly on the NCUA CUOnline website.
- 11.Report suspicious emails to the assigned credit union regulator. It may be a phishing attempt.
- 12. The NCUA will not ask for specific member information like account numbers, specific member account balances, etc. If asked to provide this information, contact the assigned credit union regulator.

If there are any questions, contact the assigned examiner, NCUA RO, or SSA, as appropriate. For technical questions, contact OneStop, the NCUA IT Service Desk, by email at <u>OneStop@NCUA.gov</u> or phone at 1-800-827-3255.

APPENDIX A: TABLE OF FIGURES

| Figure 1 - NCUA Connect Settings Page | 8 |
|--|----|
| Figure 2 - "?" Icon to Open Profile Tab Instructions | 11 |
| Figure 3 - Profile Snapshot Page | 12 |
| Figure 4 - Profile Snapshots Page | 14 |
| Figure 5 - Profile Save Button | 15 |
| Figure 6 - Profile Auto Save Counter | 16 |
| Figure 7 - Example of Certification Warning | 17 |
| Figure 8 - Credit Union Profile Module | 18 |
| Figure 9 - Profile Certify and Submit Button | 18 |
| Figure 10 - "Profile Snapshot" Page "XML" Button | 20 |
| Figure 11 - "Profile Snapshot" Page "Certified PDF" Button and PDF Download | 21 |
| Figure 12 - "Profile" Tab "View/Print Certified PDF" Button and PDF Download | 22 |
| Figure 13 - Call Report Page Edit Filing Information | 24 |
| Figure 14 - Edit Filing Information Screen | 24 |
| Figure 15 - Call Report Submissions Page | 27 |
| Figure 16 - Call Report Detail Page | 28 |
| Figure 17 - Call Report Page Errors and Warnings Links | 29 |
| Figure 18 - Call Report Errors and Warnings Validation Results | 30 |
| Figure 19 - "Call Report" Tab Record Selection to Import Data | 31 |
| Figure 20 - "Import Call Report" Button | 32 |
| Figure 21 - "Call Report Information" Import File Page | 32 |
| Figure 22 - Select Call Report to Submit | 33 |

| Figure 23 - Call Report Page Submit Button | 34 |
|---|----|
| Figure 24 - Submit Call Report Screen | 35 |
| Figure 25 - Call Report Submission Confirmation Pop-up | 35 |
| Figure 26 - "Call Report" Tab Not Validated, Submitted Record | 36 |
| Figure 27 - "Unsubmit" Call Report Button | 37 |
| Figure 28 - Call Report Errors and Warnings Table | 38 |
| Figure 29 - "Call Report" Page Submit Call Report | 38 |
| Figure 30 - "Call Report Submission Confirmation" Pop-up | 39 |
| Figure 31 - "Call Report Submissions" Page | 39 |
| Figure 32 - "Correct" Call Report Button | 40 |
| Figure 33 - Two Status' for One Call Report (Pending & Validated) | 41 |
| Figure 34 - "Delete" Pending Call Report | 41 |
| Figure 35 - "Call Report" Tab "XML" Button | 42 |
| Figure 36 - "Call Report Page" PDF | 43 |
| Figure 37 - "Call Report Details Page" "View/Print PDF" Button | 44 |
| Figure 38 - "Print" Button on Individual Call Report Pages | 45 |
| Figure 39 - "Printer" lcon on the Printer Ready Screen | 45 |